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CHAIR ANDERSON: ... (gavel). .. Good morning, Members. Welcome to the September ... or
th
November 15 Water Resources Committee meeting. This morning, we have our Vice-Chair Charmaine
Tavares, Members Joe Pontanilla, Mike Molina, Dain Kane, and Robert Carroll. Member Johnson will
be joining us shortly. She's stuck on the pali behind a burning car. With us from the Department is
Herb Chang ... um ... Deputy Director Eric Yamashige; Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi. From Staff,
we have Legal Analyst David Raatz and Secretary Pauline Martins. Thank you all for being here this
morning, Members.
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UPCOUNTRY WATER METER LIST (C.C. No. 05-41)

CHAIR ANDERSON: We have one item on our agenda, the Up country water meter list. We're gonna be
taking testimony from people. I would note that we sent out a press release on this that did not get
published in The Maui News; so those people, who are here, were notified through our E-mail list. So
· .. um ... I think what we'll do is we'll open up with public testimony. I'm going to give everybody
· .. um ... we only have four testifiers, Members. We're gonna have a short meeting today. We have to
get out of here by 11 o'clock to meet flight arrangements for a meeting on Molokai this afternoon, so
· .. um ... I anticipate that most of our discussion is going to be based around the testimony that we get
this morning from people. So, I'm going to let those people who are here have four minutes to testify
and a minute to conclude because I think it's important that we hear from them on this issue. Those
people who were able to make it. With no objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much. So those of you who are here to testify, you, you will have four
minutes and a minute to conclude. Anybody with a cell phone, please turn it off this time; so we don't
disrupt the proceedings. And we'll start our testimony this morning with Stephen Kealoha, followed by
Rodney Castanaha [sic} . ... (chuckled) ... I hope that's correct. Mr. Kealoha, good morning .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
Okay.
good morning, Madam Chair
Committee.
here ... my name is Stephen Kealoha and
actually on
of my
person you just called by name is Mr. Rodney Castanha. And Rodney and his wife are, are from

And the reason I, I brought them here today was because they did have a problem with their, their water
meter installation. And he ... Rodney and his wife had actually asked me to help them out in trying to
resolve this issue for them being that they lived on Honolulu. I lived on Maui. And I, I told them I
would help them and with all the activity surrounding the elections and so forth, you know, I didn't get
to it right away. But I'm glad that you did call this meeting today because it gives us a real opportunity
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to, to come before you and testify. But I'm not, I'm gonna let Mr. Castanha tell his story but what I
wanted to do is to kind of help give you a little bit of information about Mr. Castanha and his wife.
Even though I said they're from Honolulu, they are long time, they are a longtime Maui family.
Mrs. Castanha, whose father was Walter Thomas lives or lived in Kula for over a hundred years. And
the property that Mr. and Mrs. Castanha now own actually was given to Mrs. Castanha by, by her dad.
And for the longest time beginning in 1976 they tried to get their water issue resolved. And I say 1976
because as Rodney will testify today that is when that he actually had gotten a receipt from the
Department of Water pertaining to a water connection for the property. And the ... actually the name is
under the ... uh ... the name of Walter Thomas not Mr. Castanha because the property was eventually
turned over to them.
But the point I wanna make before you today is that, you know, I had, I had heard like you did over and
over again from many different people who came before you at different, different times to testify about
the problem that we're having with this Up country water list that nobody knew what was going on. And
it was so secretive. And, and they didn't know how they got to be No.1 ,058 or whatever number they
had happened to be. And I think, you know, I think if, if you are able to do anything about it that's
really great. I think the people deserve to know what, what is really behind this whole thing. We don't
know what will happen for Mr. Castanha directly because it's an individual issue and I want him to tell
his story to you. But as you will hear, I think given that there are no black and whites actually in this
whole situation, there's a lot of gray area. I believe that the Department of Water should have been a
little bit more open to trying to accommodate the individual by making sure that his concerns were, were
taken into account because, you know, nothing is really that clear if you look at the history of, of, of
what happened to Mr. and Mrs. Castanha.
So, I just wanted to come up here and, and support them. And I told them that I would follow the issue
through for them since I live here on Maui and, you know, I'm pretty much connected with a lot of
things that are going on within the County government. And I will help them out wherever I can but
that's all I wanted to do this morning. And I want, you know, to have you hear Mr. Castanha and, and
much.
him tell
his story to you. So I thank you
ANDERSON:
MR.

Members?

One.

CHAIR ANDERSON: One meter. He's been waiting since 1976 for one meter?
MR. KEALOHA: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. KEALOHA: And he'll fill you in with more information that you may need.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Rodney Castanha, followed by Robert
Sutor.
MR. CASTANHA: Good morning, Madam Chair Anderson and board members. I'm not very good at this
probably four minutes before I even start. Like Stephen said, we are a local family and we've been
coming to Maui. I'm a retired Hawaiian Airlines pilot, so we came up quite a bit.
And actually I purchased this property from my father-in-law in, in the, in the around the '60s. And
... uh ... we knew at that time it was a big wait list or, you know, it was hard to get water, so we had
put in through my father-in-law. And as my testimony says here, there's a thing that says that we got a
water connection from the Board of Water Supply ... urn ... not knowing too much about what all of
this really meant. We came up to the property, and at that time there was a concrete thing on my
property, which is across the street from Mr. Thomas, and there was a valve there, and we actually got a
wrench and turned the, the valve and water shot out onto my property. And we noticed also that there
was a ... across the street there was a, a trench dug like and they had filled it back up with macadam
and it, and it went to a cluster of meters that was between the Okamura family and my father-in-Iaw's
family. And so, we were happy as a lark that we had water and, and I didn't find out until many years
after that, that we really had what they called a lateral, and the receipt saying that we had a water
connection, you know, we, we didn't know.
And so, we came up and we, we met with ... urn ... Mr. Herbert Chang in his office and, and tried to
get this thing resolved, and brought a receipt up to him that's attached to this thing here, and, and they
had no records. They, they had absolutely no records on our property and what was done or what they
gave us and, and ... urn . . . but they do have this copy now saying that the deposit for service
connection.
I missed something in the very beginning. I have a letter here that was written to the Maui County
Board of Water Supply that I forgot to put in with my testimony. And if it's okay, could I submit this
and make copies?
ANDERSON:
do it
done.
at
this is my last thing. I
when we talked
to Mr. Chang in, in, in, I think it was 2004 or 2005,
mentioned to us that there was a letter that had
gone out to all the homeowners about getting on the list and stuff and that, which we never got. We
never ever got anything so we were never on the list because we didn't answer that letter that was
supposed to come to all the homeowners. And I don't know if they just didn't send it to Honolulu
people or, or what but ... I, I think that's all I can say. I just ... we've been waiting for 30 years and,
and, you know, I, I feel that something should've been done. I, I, I know for a fact, as my letter says,
that there are other people that came in, in the '90s, in fact ... in, in the year 2000, who happened to be
my neighbors, that came from the mainland, and lord and behold they built two houses, and they have
water meters. And I, I don't understand why we don't have a water meter. I, I thank you very much for.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Hang on, Mr. Castanha. We're gonna have questions. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. You said your neighbors that live next ... is it right next to
you?
MR. CASTANHA: Across the street.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Or down the road or?
MR. CASTANHA: Across the street.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Across the street?
MR. CASTANHA: Between us and the Okamuras across street. His name is Mr. Thompson. He came in early
2000s, I think, and Mr. Cost built in like in the 1990s. And 1COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. CASTANHA: --don't know where Cost came from, but I know that Thompson came from the mainland
and ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Would you happen to know if their lot had a water meter and they built the
house?
MR. CASTANHA: No, they didn't have a water meter.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: They didn't have a meter?
MR. CASTANHA: Uh-uh.
COUNCILMEMBER

got a meter when

house?

MR.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, any other questions? Mr. Castanha, where is your property?
MR. CASTANHA: Polipoli Road.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And were you previously on a, a water list?
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MR. CASTANHA: I think we got put on the list when I came up to see the Department of Water, when I came
up to see Mr. Chang.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Either in ...
MR. CASTANHA: I think at that time we were put on a list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And do you know where, where, where you are on the list?
MR. CASTANHA: Yeah, I'm 546 or something. We're looking at least another 30 years.
CHAIR ANDERSON: The ... urn ... the paperwork that you're gonna share with us ... urn ... is there a
TMK number on any of that paperwork?
MR. CASTANHA: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. CASTANHA: Yeah. And the, on my original thing that I submitted to you folks, it had my TMK on it
too. It's (2) 2-2-16-006.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You, you have submitted test. .. , or written?
MR. CASTANHA: Oh, I have testimony submitted, yes. I ... we faxed ... we E-mailed it Sunday. It's four
pages.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Have we gotten it?
MR. CASTANHA: I have a clean copy here if anybody needs.
ANDERSON:
last thing I have is
Mr. Sutor.
(NOTE: A short pause.) Okay. Thank you very
CASTANHA:

this

see it

binders?

testimony?

ANDERSON: Maybe you can give it to Staff, Mr. Cast ... , Castanha, and.
MR. CASTANHA: Okay, this is my copy but I have it on my computer. (NOTE: He handed his copy to
Mr. Raatzfor copying/distribution as he walked away from the microphone.) I will ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: I don't have it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: We'll make sure you get that copy back. Thank you very much for being here.
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MR. CASTANHA: You can keep the copy. I'll, I'll run an E-mail on it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And we've got a phone number for you?
MR. CASTANHA: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you so much for being here. We appreciate your input.
MR. CASTANHA: Thank you to all.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Before we continue, I'd like to welcome Councilmember Johnson. Thank you for
surviving the drive.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. And the car fire is out. ... (chuckled) . ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good. Okay. Mr. Sutor is our next testifier, followed by Ginny Parsons.
MR. SUTOR: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning.
MR. SUTOR: Madam Chair, Members of the Committee, my name is Robert Sutor. I have submitted written
testimony that provides a little more detail than what I'll discuss here in my verbal testimony.
I'm the manager of Tam Yau Estates. We're an Up country developer. Our company is currently
involved in a single-family housing project in Pukalani. We first applied for water meter ... meters for
our subdivision in July of 2003. Although we found the staff and the personnel in the Water Department
to be courteous and helpful, we had been a bit frustrated with both the lack of progress and the
Department's management of the list itself. We'd like to share with you some of our observations this
morning.
it's
very
getting consistent
out
Water
respect to the status and
progress on
list itself. We'd like to see some formal updates
provided to the public with regard to, you know, what the, the periodic status of the list is and any
progress that's been made.
Secondly, it does not appear that the official list that's posted on the Water Department's web page is
current. The last application is dated November 2005. Again, we'd like to like see the list updated and
maintained on a current basis.
And lastly, and probably our, our most concern with regard to the list, is ... uh ... with our limited
experience, we're only aware of two situations with people on the list, but there's major inaccuracies
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with both those situations. For instance, let's take our subdivision for example. The list has a total of34
meters for our subdivision on the list. Our subdivision only requires 17 meters and that's old
information. So, the list is inaccurate at least with respect to our subdivision. The only other applicant
on the list that we're aware of is a subdivision in Kula Meadows that's already installed a private water
system. I, you know, again should people (applicants) that already have water systems be included on
the list?
So what it appears to me from an outside observer kind a looking in with very limited information is that
there seems to be a lack of process within the Water System ... Water Department itself with respect to
management of this list. For instance, it does not appear that there's a process for reviewing the
accuracy of the application information or a process for making modifications or corrections to requests
that are already on the list. So, you know, could we implement a process for making modifications?
And furthermore, what we'd like to see, and we don't know whether this has happened, but just from
our limited experience, it doesn't appear that it has. Is there a, a process within the Water Department
for review and getting of this information that's on list, and some verification with the applicants that,
that what's on the list is what they need and is appropriate? I think that would be essential to the Water
Department trying to get their arms around how much water they're gonna need, because if a lot of this
information is obsolete that's on the list, I don't know how it would be possible to effectively manage
the ... uh ... the demands of the list itself.
So we'd like to see in, in summary, we'd like to see more attention given to the planning and, and
management of the list within the Water Department itself. Thank you very much for your time this
morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Sutor. Members, any questions? Mr. Sutor, I have a question.
MR. SUTOR: (NOTE: He s walking back to his seat.) Oh! Excuse me.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You've been on the list since July '03?
SUTOR: Yes. Yes, we

is fairly short compared to a

of

MR. SUTOR: Well actually it's a 16 house, single-family housing project. So, we need 17 meters. We need
... I understand we need 16 for the houses of course and then we need a meter for the irrigation of the
common area which is the street planting strip.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You say you have three meter applications currently outstanding?
MR. SUTOR: Yes. And that, that is an example of what happened to our 34-meter request is we were
originally planning on putting an assisted living project on the property. And we were gonna go in that
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direction until we found out that there was already one on ... a similar project on the books. So, we
abandoned that concept and went towards the single-family housing development.
So, we had three ... we had an original request for 12 meters in July of 2003, and then another
application for a single meter that was made in 2003. And at that time, they felt that there would be
1210ts; but as it turns out, there's 16 lots ranging from 10,000 to 15,000 square feet. So at ... we had
those 13 meter requests on the list and there were two ... in two separate requests.
And then we had an additional 21. We wanted the, the meter count increased to 21 for the assisted
senior living facility because we, we would need 21 meters for that project. And that's been abandoned.
So that's no longer a request, a, a valid request. We will need some of those meters but not anywhere
near the amount of meters we needed.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so I appreciate your testimony regarding the ... urn ... the fact that the list hasn't
been updated online. But as it is right now, do you know where you are on the list? What number you
are?
MR. SUTOR: We're actually six ... 620,621, and 820.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, those aren't the numbers of your applications? Those are the-MR. SUTOR: Those are priority numbers. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --priority numbers?
MR. SUTOR: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. SUTOR: You're welcome.
ANDERSON:

you

coming.

CHAIR ANDERSON: Wait a minute. We have a question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning. When you abandoned the idea of the
assisted living project, was the Water Department notified of you abandoning that particular portion of
the project?
MR. SUTOR: No, they were not. We talked to them specifically and asked them, you know, how many meters
do you have on the list for us and they said 34. We, we pointed out that actually there was only
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supposed to be 21 because our last application was to apply to have them increase the meter applications
from 13, which we had in the previous two requests, to 21. Instead of that they, they evidently got
added. But we asked about, you know, what do we do about the fact that we've ... um ... we no longer
have the project. And ... um ... at that point, you know, it was to file a new application. We were
concerned about putting ourselves again down at the bottom of the list. So we, we left it the way it was.
There's evidently no requirement to make amendments but you'd think you would amend your, your
applications that already on the list rather than create a new application.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So you left the application as is then?
MR. SUTOR: Yeah; yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Thank you very much, Mr. Sutor, for being here. Our next
testifier is Ginny Parsons. Ginny is a member of the Board of Water Supply.
MS. PARSONS: Aloha, Madam Chair and, and Council Members. And I, I know it's getting close to the end
of the year and I just want to commend an outstanding Committee at a time when water, technology,
research and development has dramatically changed. And Michelle Anderson stepped up to the plate to
guide you all and it's very important this year. I, I hope Madam Chair will want to continue to chair the,
the Water Resources Committee. As together, you have made significant steps forward with a, and with
a new Administration, and a greater understanding of the importance of water quality, we can make
Maui the best it can be. I, I really do appreciate everything you all have done this year. Thank you so
much.
I was a ... I've been a board member now for four and a half years. And in 2003 (April 2003) which is
where I'm gonna concentrate my testimony, you can find these minutes of the board meeting online.
This was an issue of the Upcountry water meter list and we had several individuals, and since this didn't
get published the paper, maybe
bringing them forward with their testimony. They came to testify
before the Board because the water meter list was such a mess. And ... um . .. we had ... I'd,
say there were seven or eight significant testifiers to the
say" .. I, I haven't counted them here, but
fact
there were, there were numerous dup."", duplications on the meter list. Now these are
numbers, which .. " what my understanding from the Department was, when you, you would pick up the
phone. You didn't fin out an application. You'd just pick up the phone, and you'd call in and say I
want a meter, and you give them your name and your TMK, and you went on the list. Nobody had a
master list that they looked at when the phone calls were made to find out if you were already on that
list.
So I had several copies of the list. I had TMK, in order of the TMK. I also had it by name. And I also
have it by priority number. And I wanna tell you, when I, when I started looking at it, I was shocked
and I brought it before the Board and said we need to clean this up. You've got so many duplication
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numbers on here that you may not have 700 people. You may have only 350. There were
200 duplicated TMKs. And there were a number of folks who testified that their, their numbers
changed; and that people that subdivided got their, their TMK numbers moved ahead of the people that
were already on the list. So people were getting subdivisions, getting new TMKs, and that TMK was
moving up, and we didn't deal with it. We didn't deal with it properly.
One of the other things that I found really interesting when I was, especially when I was reading back
through the, the testimony was Mr. Y okote, and I think I've talked to you about him before. He came
in. He was dividing property into six parcels. He, he got a letter in December of 2002. Po 'okela Well
was going online, if you all remember, and he brought a check in and paid the Department for the six
water meters. And in March of 2003, he received a letter from Mr. Tengan and later a check was
returned. Not their check but a check from the County. They had cashed his check and, and two, let's
see, December, January, February. Three or four months later, the, the County issues him a check back
and says, sorry you don't get your meter.
And I'm going through and I'm reading some more testimony and there's another testifier that says she
called. She, she wanted to come in and pay a deposit for her water meter and they told her that
everything was put on hold. You know the more I look at this, and I've said this before, what I think we
need to do a deeper investigation. I know-MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MS. PARSONS: --that it's an audit but I, I think we need to do a deeper investigation because, you know, who
did put this project on hold? Wa ... , was Po'okela Well put on hold? I mean that was a rumor that we
all heard for a long time.
I made a motion to have the meter list reviewed and the duplication numbers to, to be brought forward
so we could take a look at the list and get it cleaned up, and the motion died. Now, I don't know, it
makes it easier when you manipulate things to have it in chaos, and maybe that's what happened. But
this meter list, from day one, has not been properly handled, neither has notification. And the folks that
are ... testified earlier had been before the Board, and they sent out these letters to whatever they had.
They didn't go to the tax records and say, what's the latest tax record? They just sent them out, and ifit
get to
individual was not
Why
you, you have a
go to
and look at the tax records and
out where the current address

MR. RAATZ:

minutes.

MS. PARSONS: --where the current address is? So, I thank you. If you have any questions.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ginny. Questions from Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Ginny.
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MS. PARSONS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: When you said you made a motion to have this water list investigated,
the motion that you made was with the Board of Water Supply?
MS. PARSONS: Yes, it was.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the members voted down?
MS. PARSONS: Voted it down.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Any reasons?
MS. PARSONS: Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: On the discussions that you guys had?
MS. PARSONS: Mr. Tengan made a remark in there ... urn ... that ifthere were any inaccuracies, he didn't
see what problem that was gonna 'cause .... (end of tape, start lB @ 9:37 a.m.) . .. if they purged the
list, that they probably would purge somebody out of there. But that's why you have an audit, and we
were supposed to have had an audit of this list. We paid for an audit of the list. I think at this meeting,
Herb Chang was out for maternity leave so we, we couldn't get any real direct answers. Herb may hold
the key to a lot of this--how the audits were taking place. But at this point, we had only issued like 30
letters. From 2000 ... from the 2003 January to this April date, we had only issued 30 letters to people
to come in and get meters.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The information that you pulled out in regards to the three lists by Tax
Map Key, by name, and by priority, was it shared with the, the Board?
MS. PARSONS: The Board had access to all of it. Yes.
Thank you.
ANDERSON: Any other questions? Ginny,
... when
were
about ... urn ... I guess
an applicant for a meter was told that Po 'okela had been put on hold. About when was that?
MS. PARSONS: That was ... this was in April of 2003 ... urn ... let me see if I can find her quickly, quick
enough in here. She had ... urn ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's close enough.
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MS. PARSONS: Yeah. She, she had called the Department. She was trying to get a meter and ... urn ... and
trying to come in to pay for one and they told her that the whole project had been put on hold. And
nobody would give her any more information.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And then you also mentioned that letters were sent out. You mean letters notifying
people they could come in and get a meter?
MS. PARSONS: There was a, a number of letters that went out in December that Mayor Apana and David
Craddick sent out because they were ready to put Po' okela Well online. The plan was to leave the
contractor's pump in, have a pump made, get that well online at that moment because we knew we
needed it. And they sent out a number of letters. People came in . . . my recollection when I asked
Director Tengan how much money had come in for meters because he returned all of it, which I didn't
think was proper anyway. But he returned the money, and it was about $250,000 he said that he had
received from December through January or February, whenever they turned off the, the key to this.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So you're saying that ... urn ... that the Apana Administration had sent a, sent out
letters notifying pe ... , people Po 'okela was coming online? People sent in their money, and then when
the Administrations changed, the Department sent the money back?
MS. PARSONS: Yes. It was cashed and it went into the accounts. Forms were filled out when the money was
the ... I mean you filled out an application when you went for the meters, and the money was then sent
back with a letter, with a letter saying that ... uh ... it wasn't ready at this time, and they would let 'em
know when it would be.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so, do you know if those people who, who's money was returned, did they
maintain their, their number on the list?
MS. PARSONS: It's hard to say. I, I don't know. No, we've never been, we've never been given any in-depth
in ... , information on the list since 2003.
ANDERSON: And, and

l""..,..,rl"1n-."",nt

to take care

duplications?

MS. PARSONS: No.
ANDERSON: Once it was brought to your ... their attention?
MS. PARSONS: No. The list is still up in the 700s, 800s, I think, and they keep adding to it. And what my
recommendation was let's not add any more names until we can see where we are on this list. I mean,
we're just making the list longer but it may not be that long. I know there were 200, over 207, I think,
duplications of the ... uh ... TMK on the list that I had. And again, the rules ... we didn't have a rule
in place. So what do you do when somebody subdivides and they get extra TMKs? Do those TMKs
move up on the list because they were part of the original parcel? You know you're ... that ... those
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are questions that we really need to look at. If you were asking for one extra meter and you divide into
three lots. Do all three of those lots move up ahead of everybody else?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Let's see if we can find out that today. Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Ginny, because we have a lot of condominiumization of the Ag lots,
particularly. Is it possible that some of the duplication for the TMKs may have been two separate
owners on the same TMK applying for their own water meters?
MS. PARSONS: Not that I've found, Jo Anne. Most of the duplication and there are test..., there's testimony
in this April 24th that you could ... if you read, it's for ... there's about 82 pages of testimony. It's
Page 7 to Page 89. But the people who came in and testified would have three numbers and they were
just asking for one meter. I mean two to three numbers, all ... a lot of them. They had just kept calling
in and they, every time they would call in, they'd get placed on there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it wasn't and none of them were due to the condominiumization
ofthe same TMK?
MS. PARSONS: I can't say that none of them were but I'm, I'm just saying the testimony that we received,
most of 'em were ... Mr. Yokote, for example, had two numbers. He was 112 and he was 269, and he
was just, he was just doing his own. He was doing an Ag subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah. And, and that's where I think we've gotta get a handle on it
because in some of those cases, I know we're getting TMKs that are the same for people in West Maui,
but it's due to condominiumization. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you so much for being here, Ginny.
MS. PARSONS: Thank you.
•.. END

ANDERSON:

PUBLIC

questions?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Not for Ms. Parsons but for you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, for me? Thank you, Ms. Parsons.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to the list that we got on October 6th
list that we got from the ... uh ... the Department?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Say that again, Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The list that is accompanied by your memo.
CHAIR ANDERSON: The ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: October 19th • It shows Up country Water Service and there's a whole
bunch of listing. Right in the front.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. And, and that list is dated. We got that in December oflast year.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And that's the latest?
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's the latest but we're going to find out. That's the latest that we have but we're
going to find out right now what the latest list is.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. So ... urn ... maybe we should start off with that question to the Department.
Either Mr. Yamashige or Mr. Chang could answer. What is the most current list? And, and you can see
the list that we have here. It's dated December 9, 2005. We know that you guys have issued meters
since then. So ... urn ... and we were just told that the list on the website has not been updated for a
year. So can you give us some clarity on that?
MR. Y AMASHIGE: Yes, Madam Chair. The list that you have is the most current list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's the most current list?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Yes.
ANDERSON: You folks don't ... urn ... update the list as you issue meters?
Y AMASHIGE: No, we
ANDERSON:

issued any meters since December 9th.
December

'05,

not issued any meters

MR. CHANG: Clarification. We haven't made any offers.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could you identify yourself for the record, please?
MR. CHANG: Oh. Herbert Chang, Water Department, Engineering Division. To answer the question, the
December 9,2005 list ... urn ... we haven't made any offers to anybody on the list yet. So this, this is
the most current list that the Department has but we haven't updated it since.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: So if there's been new applications, they're not on this list?
MR. CHANG: There have been requests made to be placed on the list. We haven't updated the list. So there
are many requests that we haven't included in this list yet.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So we were told ... urn ... that you folks have issued or issued meters in the, in the
amount of ... uh ... somewhere in the amount of 200,000 gallons. So that was all done prior to
December 9, 2005?
MR. CHANG: We have been issuing meters ... urn ... no, that's not right. They ... urn ... we have been
issuing meters and depending on when projects have come in and if they reserved the meters that's some
... that's one instance where we offered a meter. They reserve the meter. They have like two years to
complete their infrastructure improvements. And then as those guys trickle in and complete their
infrastructure, then we would allow the meters to be installed. So it just kinda like trickles here and
there but ... urn ... it's all based on the Department having offered them the meter, and the applicant
accepted.
Or there's a 60-day period, I think between October and December 2002 where people had certain
rights--vested rights. They could apply for the meter, and reserve the meters, and if they had to do
infrastructure improvements too, they had two years and plus two six-month extensions. And when they
complete their infrastructures then they can apply for the meters. So the meter approval was kinda like,
you know, spread out all over the place depending on the applicant's completion of the requirements for
water service.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So let me get this straight, Mr. Chang. Are you saying that people received meters
simply because they had gone through the subdivision process and the, the subdivision review process
sent the application for subdivision to the Water Department? I mean what I'm trying to get at is people
received meters regardless of whether or not they were on this list?
MR. CHANG: No ... urn ... as far as, if you're talking about subdivisions ... urn ... I guess we can talk
about separating the
period where October to December where people had vested rights they could
actually, say, reserve. We
that category and you have that other category where after December
we
2002 where
to be on
list for like
case of subdivision, you ... urn . . .
certain amount water that we was able to offer people on the list. I
it was
a half a
gallons. So we did go down on, on, on the list and off..., and made offers to projects on the list, which
include subdivisions.
HHUH_lll

So if you go back to the, to our first category where people who, who we told them that if you had a
vested right, they can lock in their rights by reserving their meters in, in case of subdivisions. Say if
they had like a five-lot subdivision, they would pay for them five meters up front, and they'd have two
years to complete the improvements.
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And in the second category, where we, we had a half a million gallons of water to issue. We went down
the list. We offered projects, and if you had subdivisions, obviously you had to do some improvements
to the infrastructure depending, you know, the degree of improvements. But, again, you had to reserve,
and you had two years plus two six-month extensions to complete. And if you don't supposedly finish it
by within that time period, you lose your money, and the meters that we had, did offer to them goes to
the next person down the list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So all of this was done prior to December 2005? You have not issued any meters since
December 2005 for Up country? Is that correct?
MR. CHANG: As far as the 2005 list, we haven't offered anybody on the list meters.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Have you offered water meters to anybody since December 9,2005, whether they're on
the list or not?
MR. CHANG: There were some exceptions that the Director had made. Very few, not too many though.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Exceptions based on what?
MR. CHANG: According to the rule, the Water, Water Meter Issuance Rule for the Up country System, there's
a criteria where the Director or whoever is in charge of the, the Water Department. There's three
criterias which they can use to ... urn ... I guess deviate from the ... that particular ordinance. And
that's the basis of the Director's approval.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I guess we need to look into that. Is that somewhere in the Board of Water Supply
Rules?
MR. CHANG: I think it's in ordinance ... urn ... 16-something. I can't remember the number.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Kushi, do you know what exceptions he's speaking of?
Supply
Subchapter 3,
... urn ... before

MR. KUSH!:
Section 1

CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could you just review that briefly for us, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: You want me to read it?
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Or just tell us what it means, whichever is easiest.
MR. KUSHI: Okay. This applies to, to the Upcountry Water ... Water Issuance Rule. In essence, it says the
board by a two-thirds vote of its entire voting membership may waive or modify requirements of this
rule when not contrary to the public's health, safety or welfare, and when the board finds: (1) Strict
application of the rule would cause an absurd, unfair or unreasonably harsh result; (2) The board finds
that the circumstance or condition is unique or exceptional, and the board would grant the same request
if made by every similarly situated applicant; and (3) The resulting action of the board will be without
detriment to existing users.
So applicants from my understanding from what I, I, I've been through have been coming to the board
to ... um ... to ask the board, or present to the board their circumstances; and after that, I believe in
couple situations the board has recommended, has voted in favor of these applicants, and recommended
to the Director to grant the waiver.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And then, and then the Director did?
MR. KUSHI: I believe in almost all situations.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so that means then that there have been meters issued since December '05 on,
based on these waivers?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. Ma ... , Madam Chair, maybe clarification. When you say meters issued ... um ... that's
one situation--meters issued and installed. Maybe the other phrase would be meters granted because if
the Director or the board (through the board) says, okay, you, you get your meter, you would still then
have to put in various improvements. And we don't ... the Department will not issue and connect the
meter until these improvements are done and, and they have a period of two years to do those
improvements. So in essence, they may get a reservation. So I can see where the, the ... um ... maybe
the discrepancy is, is present in that meters issued versus meters granted.
ANDERSON: Yeah. Thanks for that explanation. So now maybe ... um ... to kind of clarify
and,
Members, just so you know, I took the liberty your binder of tagging the Water Meter Issuance
It's got a pink tag on
you wanna go to that, where we're. . .
just read
waiver.
So basically it sounds like somebody wants to take the time and come to the Board of Water Supply
and plead their case, chances are they're gonna get their meter. Is that, is that a fair assumption,
Mr. Kushi, based on your experience?
MR. KUSHI: You're, you're asking the wrong person. Maybe you should've asked, member Parsons. She's
on the board.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well you've, you've attended all the meetings and I try to read all the Board of Water
Supply minutes and that's what I found is that when people come and plead their case--
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MR. KUSHI: I've, I've, I've ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: --they get sympathy from the board.
MR. KUSHI: Right. I've seen it go both ways.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah?
MR. KUSHI: I've seen the board deny some requests.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So maybe the next question. We're trying to get some kind of baseline here that we can
go from, Members. We were told that 200,000 gallons--first we were told it was 300,000 gallons, and
then that was corrected to 200,000 gallons--had been issued based on the expectation of Po 'okela Well
corning online. So is it safe to assume that was all done prior to December 9, 2005? Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: According to my numbers, we did ... urn ... we were told to issue 200,000 gallons based on
Po'okela; but in reality, we only issued about ... urn ... hundred, roughly 140,000. So there's still
another 60,000 that we could issue ... offer.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And of that 140,000 gallons, how many meters does that total?
MR. CHANG: I don't have that number.
CHAIR ANDERSON:
And, and were any of these ... urn . .. and these were all done before
December 9, 2005?
MR. CHANG: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so is it safe to assume that everybody that's on this list, whether it's a duplicate or
not, are still waiting for meters?
MR. CHANG: That's correct.
ANDERSON:

new

corne

not

to

MR. CHANG: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And how many, how many applications does that total?
MR. CHANG: I don't have a number; but I can ... urn ... let's say in, in a year's time, we're talking, probably
talking 150, 200 more, roughly.
CHAIR ANDERSON: A hundred fifty to 200 more, roughly?
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MR. CHANG: Projects.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Projects.
MR. CHANG: Yes, projects.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So that could be one meter or?
MR. CHANG: Multiple meters.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Multiple meters depending on how many lots are involved?
MR. CHANG: That's right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And how difficult would it be to get the number that ... urn ... the number of meters
issued for the 140,000 gallons?
MR. CHANG: Not too difficult. I could ... urn ... depending on.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So if we take a recess, you can make a phone call?
MR. CHANG: Oh, no. It's going to take ... urn .. a few hours to go through records and ... urn ... backtrack
what we did.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You don't keep any tally or any accounting system to reflect that?
MR. CHANG: The, the degree of tabulations is just who we offered to, who accepted it, and how many meters.
And so, it's just pulling out from that database.
ANDERSON:

must keep some accounting system because you

... urn ...
Engineering
takes care
meters they accept,
then fiscal is a different
takes [sic}, how
of that.

money for each
to, and
We
take account

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, questions? Mr. Pontanilla followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe what you can do, Chair, is if we can send to the
Department ... urn ... 'cause there's a lot of information that's going, you know, being passed on. And,
and, you know, sometimes we get lost in the process. I was wondering if a letter could be written to the
Department to give us a flow chart in regards to the process because I think Mr. Chang earlier mentioned
about subdivisions. And subdivisions, you know, have a period of time that they need to come up and
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do their improvements, and if it's not don ... , done then they go, you know, to the bottom of the list.
Maybe for me, you know, it, it would give me a clearer picture as far as, you know, when somebody
requests for a water meter--the process.
And the other thing is who maintains the list? Is there a person that maintain the list ... urn ... on the
annual, well maintain the list constantly, daily? And then on the annual basis, if the ... urn ... the
Department notify people on the list in regards to their request ifthey need it or not, annually? So.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's a good suggestion, Mr. Pontanilla. And in fact. (NOTE: She cleared her throat.)
Excuse me. I just trying to get us a, an update on whether or not this list was accurate or, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Just trying to respond to the comments that were made in, in testimony. But it's my
intention to ask Mr. Chang to, to just go through the process for us verbally today so that we and people
listening can understand what the pro ... , procedures and process is within the Department that maybe
we're not aware of so that we can have a better understanding. I think that's the best we can get, you
know, accomplished today. So at least we have a better understanding of the procedure and, and, and in
doing that follow through with the rule to see how, how the procedure is reflected in the way the rule is
written. But I will ask in writing for a flow chart.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: It's a good idea. Ms. Johnson, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And this would be for Herb. When we're looking at the list and it's
got a meter size. Let's say it's 5/8-inch. Is there an approximation of the number of gallons based on
the size of the meter that you make in terms of the gallons per day that would be utilized so that if it's a
bigger meter it would be presumed that it's going to be of greater usage? Is that correct?
CHANG: Yeah; yes. We categorize the requests ... urn ... three basic categories. One is to implement
the third would be like water
applications. One would be ... the other one would be subdivisions.
service requests. Could be
farmers asking for a larger meter or ... urn . . .
wants a
bigger meter for just the sake of having a bigger meter.
In the case of building permits, if someone wants to do a cottage, we have a set number of gallons that
we expect or estimate that would use. In case of ... urn ... building permits for commercial projects,
we would ask the developer how much gallons does he estimate he will use with this meter.
In the case of subdivisions, we have different zonings like Ag, Residential, Rural. We have set numbers
for each type of zoning. So like in case you have like three meters, we just ... in Residential zones, we,
we would three times whatever number.
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The fanners, the third, last category ... category, the farmers. We would again work with them and ask
them given the bigger meter, how much more gallons would they use per day? So that's the basic steps
we use to estimate the demand for all the projects on the list.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, 'cause you have no way of really knowing even ifit was a application
for a single-family residence. If it's used for a single-family residence, you don't know if there's four
family members or eight family members or if it's a vacation rental.
MR. CHANG: Yes. Yes, we don't.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then that directly correlates to, I guess, how much water
availability there, there really would be. My other question is with regard to some of the fire flow
calculations. Because there've been some changes perhaps from the time that these individuals made
their application for a meter, do they know or do they go back and check or do you advise them to
check, let's say with the Fire Department, to make sure they have sufficient fire flow with regard to the
size of the meter that they're getting?
MR. CHANG: Unless the applicant comes to the Department and asks what would be the requirements they
would need to fulfill to obtain the water meter that we'd, we would offer them. The Department has not
gone through each project and sent a letter out to the applicant saying in anticipation of getting your
meter, you have to do this, this, and that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Just from a ... I don't, just as a consumer perspective, have you at
any time sent out a mass mailing or done any publications to the people that appear on this list just for
information purposes or education purposes to alert them that if they're on the list, they may want to
check these things to make certain that they have the proper size meter on your list?
MR. CHANG: The Department has not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Let's say for example someone did learn that they didn't have, or like
Mr. Sutor explained, he had some changes his plans therefore his needs changed. Is there any process
whereby somebody comes and they say, oh well I needed this size meter but now because, you know,
my kids are moving
we're going to
house a
bigger, so we
a
meter because
we'll have more people the house or that we want two meters because we're doing the main dwelling
and an ohana. Do you ... how do you adjust the list? Or do you not adjust it? And do you
that
second request or that deviating request farther down on the list again?
MR. CHANG: You're correct on the last part. If somebody has a request for example say for one S/8-inch
meter and he decides later on to do a subdivision, just example, and we would tell that person you need
to get on the list for a, a subdivision again.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you require them then to get farther down the list but for any
deviations whatsoever they have to then, I guess, make a new application in essence? Is that correct?
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MR. CHANG: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. What if the person originally wanted to do a subdivision and now
their request is actually less in tenns of the meter needs, maybe they decided not to do it, and they're
only doing one dwelling?
MR. CHANG: In that case where to be specific say somebody wanted to do a 12-lot subdivision and they
... when the meters were offered--we offered them 12 meters but they say they just want to do six
lots--then there probably doesn't have a problem with that. They would just offer ... give him the six
that he wants and the other six, they just can give to other people down below him on the list.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But let's say somebody just knows in advance that the property has
been sold and there was only gonna be one home built. What's your mechanism for actually recognizing
that? Do they now--because they have a deviation in the request--do they now come farther down on the
list?
MR. CHANG: No, what the Department does is ... urn ... in this particular case you're asking, we would not
make any adjustments to the list even though we were notified by the owner that he wants less meters
'cause what's going to happen is if the property is sold, the next person that buys it, he's ... the
Department feels it's probably fair to leave the original request intact 'cause the meter request runs with
the property, not with the individuals.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So what you're doing is you're saying when your tum comes up,
whatever your original request was, we're going to honor that. If they .. .(end of tape, start 2A @
10:08 a.m.). .. anything less, you'll deal with that at that time?
MR. CHANG: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
ANDERSON: Okay.

Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
you, Madam
Mr. Chang,
is some good
infonnation you're giving us, the body here today, but I would like to ask. Do you ... urn ... I guess
dispense this type of infonnation to the public in the fonn of pamphlets? Or do you provide a, a
frequently asked question type of system if will because I think that, that's what builds towards the
frustration that's occurring in our community with the Water Department is not knowing where, where
to go? Who to tum to? Is that something the Department would ... is looking at in the future? I, I, I
would hope it is because I think the more open the Department can become or to the public in regards to
answering these questions about the, the Upcountry water meter list, I think the, the better the public
relations between the Department and the general public will be. You know, I, I, I guess I'm dovetailing
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off of the questions Members Johnson and Pontanilla had in terms of creating some type of a, you know,
education system out there.
If I could use as an example the Real Property Tax Department has aggressively gone out and tried to
inform the public about who you can tum to in terms of getting some type of property tax relief. And in
this case, it was mentioned earlier that the Department has stated that you can go out ... go to the Water
Board and basically appeal or express your concerns and get something ... a, a matter overturned with
regards to water meter. And hearing the frustrations from, I guess, Mr. Castanha and Mr. Kealoha in
waiting 30 years for a single water meter is just, you know, unacceptable. So can you offer some
comment on that? I know it's a very, very long-winded question but ... uh ...
MR. CHANG: Thank you very much. There is a fact sheet on our website and we will update that to include
some of the discussions today, if ... that is a response to your question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And ... urn ... anything else you're looking at that ... uh ...
improving the system? I mean if you can't answer that today, you know, 1-MR. CHANG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --understand but.
MR. CHANG: Yeah, I won't answer that today.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, we have very little time. I want us to take a quick recess and when we come
back, I want Mr. Chang to go through the process step-by-step so that we understand it. The public gets
a chance to see what their procedures are. And as he goes through each step, I'll have him pause so that
anybody that needs a question for clarification ... urn ... can have that opportunity so that we go
through it in a systematic way and we're not jumping an around with questions that are out of context.
Did you have a quick question, Mr. Kane?
Hang on,
ANDERSON: Oh,

not

yet.

sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, yeah. Thank you. So if maybe during the recess--ifyou're gonna to call
a recess, Madam Chair--if that could provided, you know, that would be helpful. And you know
especially for us, too, you know, we could have a flow chart 'cause, you know, we, we here on the
Council, even us--well at least I'll speak for myself--we're not clear how the process works. And, you
know, when you talk to people on the street, they're just so frustrated with, you know, how come so and
so gets ahead of line. I've had people ask me, you know, I've been waiting for years and now I have a
chance to get my water meter but I'm told to put in all these improvements which is, you know, quite an
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expense for somebody who, you know, was only gonna put a two or three lot, three, three units family
subdivision. So, anyway. Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's what we're gonna try to get to in his explanation. Mr. Kane, did you have a
question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just very brief, Chair. And, and thank you for.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I know the time is tight. And maybe there isn't an answer now, but is there
something that the Department is willing to come forward and ask from this body that can help this
situation get better? In other words, we're gonna ask you point blank to the Deputy that's here this
morning. What can this Committee, through the Council, any . . . what, what action, single most
important action, can we take to assist the Department in making the, the, the situation better than it is?
Can you respond to that now? Or do you need to think about that and get back to us with that? 'Cause I
think that's gonna be the first step towards working towards getting a better situation. Instead of, not
instead of, forgive me. Because I ... it's important the, the issues we're going through. But in my
mind, in the end, we gotta take some official action and whatever that action can be can help you guys,
especially Engineering Department, who's stacked up to here and out to here with all the stuff sitting on
their desks. For any of us on this body who hasn't gone down there, I would suggest you go down to
that Department and see for yourself what these guys are dealing with. So, I don't know. Dir. .. ,
Deputy, is there anything that you can say now or ... and I don't mind if you give us something later?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I'd like to respond later.
COUNCILMEMBER

Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair. Recess is fine.

another question before we go to recess.
on
Cast...,
ANDERSON: Okay. So I
Castanha said that he was told that a letter had been sent out regarding the priority list. So back 2002,
did the Department send out a letter telling everybody when this new priority or rather Water Meter
Issuance Rule for the Up country Water System was adopted? At that time, was a letter sent out to all
the people on the existing list? Or what letter was Mr. Castanha referring to, Mr. Chang, since you're
the one he met with?
MR. CHANG: Yeah. I'm sorry. I don't, I don't remember the meeting but ... urn ... I don't recall having
any letters sent out to all. To, to me, it would be an astronomical procedure 'cause we have so many
properties that don't have meters. To actually track down who doesn't have a meter, to send all those
meters [sic] out. I don't think we did that, the Department did that. But there may have been one or
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two, maybe half a dozen situations, where certain projects were pend ... , impending, and with this new
rule and with the constant ... urn . .. maybe recent interactions with the Department, maybe the
Department felt it was their responsibility to at least notify these half a dozen people that with this new
rule, it may impact your project that you was maybe just so, just recently talking to the Department
about. Maybe, there may have been one or a few letters like that but. But a mass mailing, I don't recall
the Department doing that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So it was just a notice in the paper?
MR. CHANG: I believe so. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so maybe the letter that was referenced in Mr. Castanha's testimony was somebody
sent him a notification letter? That he never got a notification that he was ripe for a meter?
MR. CHANG: I don't know of any. The only one I remember was that Apana, Mr. Craddick's mass mailing.
That's the only one I'm, I'm aware of. Other than that, I don't know of any.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Well, we'll look at Mr. Castanha's written testimony and papers to see what we
can find out. Members, we're gonna take a ten minute recess. Please be prompt. We're gonna be back
at 10:25. This Committee is in recess. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS:

10:15 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:28 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: '" (gavel) ... Thank you, Members, for that recess. Okay. So, Mr. Chang, if you
could go through the procedure for the issuance of meters. And Members, if wanna follow along, he's
gonna go through Subchapter 2 in the Water Met.., Meter Issuance Rule and give us a more specific
explanation of the procedure that they go through to issue meters for Upcountry. So that we're aware of
it and the public is aware too, hopefully. Mr. Chang.
MR. CHANG: Okay.
start off with
subdivisions 'cause that's the easiest to explain. When an
application
a subdivision is, is received by the Department of
Works, Development Services
Administration, we get a copy of the ap ... , application some, some notification; and with that, they have
a date that the request was made to apply for a subdivision. And we would . . . in
areas of
Upcountry, where we denied the ... urn ... where the Department says we're deferring action 'cause
we don't have any meters to allow, to offer. We're not, therefore, we're not able to process this
particular application. We would put that application on the ... or have it done in a database to be put
on the priority list and we would use that date that the DSA provides us. As far as for ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Wait. Let's just stop right there for a second. So if an application comes in and
there isn't water available, you then put them on the priority list? Or do you check to see if they're
already on the list?
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MR. CHANG: We would ... urn ... in most cases, we just ... put it in the database to be put on the priority
list. We would make notes on . . . within our database that there was a prior application, maybe you
should cross-reference that. And ... but we would put them on the list again unless there's something
really strange where they made two applications within a year and at that time we could question
whether it's valid.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And then what if they are on the priority list?
MR. CHANG: We would put 'ern on twice.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You would put them on twice? So if they were on the priority list say at No. 300 and
there wasn't water available, then you would put them in the database, to then put on the priority list,
and eventually they'd get on the priority list again. So then they would be No. 500 as well as number
whatever I said, 300?
MR. CHANG: Yeah, that's correct. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So then if their No. 300 would corne up before their No. 500, then they'd get another
shot at it at that time?
MR. CHANG: It could happen. Or we would ask them in, in specific cases, where in the past, where we had
told them ... urn ... okay, your initial, your earlier request, we're gonna offer you meters but let us
know whether you wanna cancel out the second one before we offer the meters. And in some cases, they
tell us, yeah, I don't need the second. And we just ... in the next update, we would delete the second,
the later.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So say they get to the 300 and, and you're not gonna get to 300 unless you have water
that you're issuing meters on. So when they get ... you get to their, their application as No. 300, then
do you take them off as No. 500 ... if they get a met..., a meter at 300?
CHANG: We would ask them--do you want ... do you still want your second, later date to
on
list? Yeah. That's
we would ask
ANDERSON:

it's

the same thing?

MR. CHANG: Well the thing is we don't know what's in their agenda, so they may want more, so we can't. I
don't. ... we don't want to assume anything.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, any questions on that? Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chang.
MR. CHANG: As far as building permits, this could be for additional dwellings or additions. If the
Department denies the permit because the application requires additional water fixtures where the
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existing water meter cannot handle the additional like bathrooms or things like that, if the Department
denies that part ... , particular application, we ... the Department would put, again put that on the
database, and when the priority list is updated, we will put that project on the list.
For water service requests, second meters, upsizing, whether for future home building or farms, on
those, it's automatic denials because we no longer ... we don't have any meters for those. So, the
applicant is asked to submit in writing a form that we have which they sign and they indicate how much
meters they want ... up, whether they want to upsize or if they want to do a subdivision, how many
subdivisions ... lots, and how many, how many meters. So that's more of a formal type of submittal
request by the app ... , public.
So that's in general how we get the request to be placed on the list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so what, what motivates them to get on this list is a request for a subdivision or a
request for a building permit, basically?
MR. CHANG: Or if somebody's just wanting an extra meter.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Or an extra meter? But then you only go to the priority list when you know that you
have additional water to go online and then, and then you go from what's on the priority list?
MR. CHANG: Correct. When we know we have source available to issue meters, we ... then we would start
giving ... offering meters on the list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So let's just take the, the example of the 140,000 that, that ... uh ... gallons per day
that you issued meters on. You just took the people that were on the list, the top of the list, and went
down until you, until you got to 140,000?
MR. CHANG: That's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so,
another 60,000 gallons to issue?

issued any more meters since December '05,

It kinda goes back to that Po 'okela
We anticipated
completed
but unfortunately it kept on being, being delayed, so
intent was just do it all at one crack instead of
piecemeal.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So as Po'okela was delayed, then you stopped issuing meters?
MR. CHANG: Well, we thought Po 'okela was near at one point. So why not ... so the thought was why not
just add the 60 with the Po 'okela Well. Just do it all one, one time. So that's what, that's what
happened.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So then when ... one, one other question. Because Po'okela is not online, where
did you get the water from? Was it from the Dowling Well?
MR. CHANG: The system is capable on ... urn ... on average, you know, given the adequate rainfall to
provide meters. But in the situations of a drought, that's when we start, start getting worried that
... urn ... that the consumption would exceed our source. Fortunately, we've been able to have the two
equal or have the source a little bit greater. But that's the dangerous part about issuing more meters, you
get to a point where we fall behind.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Has, has the Department taken any water from the Dowling Well per the agreement that
the County has for regular use? In other words, a committed use?
MR. CHANG: As far as the Dowling Well, we did purchase ... the, the Board did, a 100,000 gallons from
Dowling, that they had a ... 'cause their source capacity that they developed from that well ... urn ...
you know, they had an ample amount where they could start ... they could actually offer it to other
projects and the, the Board picked up 100,000 gallons. With that 100,000, we ... uh ... offered to the
people on the priority list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So. (NOTE: She cleared her throat.) Excuse me. Of the 140,000 gallons that you
have issued against the priority list, 100,000 gallons of that came from the Dowling Well?
MR. CHANG: Actually, there was a total of 500,000 gallons that were offered to the list. Oh, excuse me. Five
hundred thousand gallons available of which we have used all except 60,000.
CHAIR ANDERSON: From the Dowling Well?
MR. CHANG: No. Out of the 500,000, 100,000 is from the Dowling Well.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So there was an, an additional 400,000 gallons available from the Up country system
that you issued?
MR. CHANG: Well, I can break it down.
was existing Haiku
available source and so we picked that up
... urn ... 100,000
just about two years ago, that 200,000 anticipation
ANDERSON: Two hundred thousand from where?
MR. CHANG: That was in anti ... , anticipation of Po 'okela Well.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, it, it didn't come from an additional source at all? It just came from the existing
sources that you had?
MR. CHANG: Correct.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: So that's 500,000 gallons? And so I'm confused because you told us that you issued
140,000 gallons.
MR. CHANG: Oh, I'm sorry. I meant from that, the recent $200 [sic], 200,000 gallon allocation, the recent
one. Yeah, so I should have been correct in saying we issued 440,000 ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Four hundred and forty thousand gallons per day was issued as of when? Prior to
December '05?
MR. CHANG: That's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Prior to December '05? And this was all issued against the priority list?
MR. CHANG: The offer was made based on ... through our priority list. Yeah. Excuse me. Some of 'em
... urn ... when the Water Meter Issuance Rule came into effect, they had that 60-day period, and
during that period, roughly 200,000 gallons were eaten up from the half a million gallons.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So 200,000 gallons. So that leaves another 240 that was then issued on the priority list?
MR. CHANG: That's correct. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, we are currently using on a regular basis 200,000 from the Haiku Well and a
100,000 from the Dowling Well? Is that correct?
MR. CHANG: That's correct. Well not directly from those wells but because of our source capacity, it's an
equation. Yeah, that's.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But that's what would be available if you needed to draw on it?
MR.

Yeah; correct. Yeah, yeah.
so

MR. CHANG: Haiku

more IS

or

we pretty much 200,000 is about max.

CHAIR ANDERSON: That's maxed out?
MR. CHANG: Maxed. The Dowling Well, I think, they only have, I think, less than a 100,000 that they
haven't ... urn ... officially locked in. They haven't assigned to any project yet.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So the agreement that we had with the Dowling Company on this well, was the total
amount that they are obligated to give to the County 100,000 gallons? I thought it was more than that.
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MR. CHANG: No, they didn't get. What they did was, under the agreement, they developed roughly seven
hundred something thousand gallons of capacity a day; and ... urn ... by that they were given the same
amount of capacity in their ... for the Pukalani project. So it kinda like was ... I hate to use the word
swap but ... urn ... 'cause the well's in Haiku, they can't use the well ... the water in Haiku 'cause
their project is in Pukalani area. So but in totality, the source demand is, you know. So it's just kinda
like swapping. I hate to use the word but that's what happened.
CHAIR ANDERSON: A tradeoff?
MR. CHANG: Like a trade-in service area.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So the most ... Dowling Well is tapped out? In other words, the capacity of that well at
700,000, we're not getting any more of that for distribution for County users, other than the 100,000?
MR. CHANG: Well we possibly could again purchase whatever they have available left.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, any questions on that? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In, in regards to all of the wells that, you know, we're
talking about ... urn . . . do we have adequate storage facilities? And, and is our transmission lines
capable of, of providing, you know, additional waters from the Dowling Well? Or do we need to
increase the storage if we were to purchase, you know, the other 100,000 dollars [sic}, or 100,000
gallons?
MR. CHANG: We would need to improve the distribution transmission storage 'cause Upcountry is so, the
area is so big that we will need to do some improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So with all this water available, then we, we still need to do a lot of
infrastructure work to get the water to the consumers?
CHANG: We ... or the developer has

responsibility.

To do
MR. CHANG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. I think that takes us to the next question and ... urn ... that's Item (d) under
16-106-04. It says, premises on the priority list that are unable to fulfill the requirements for water
service or who refuse water service shall be removed from the list. A new application must be
submitted in order to be placed back on the priority list.
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So can you explain in as much detail as you can. When it says fulfill requirements for water service,
what would those requirements be, Mr. Chang? So that people know what they're looking at because
we hear all the time that they waited to be on the list. They find, their number came up, and then they
are told they have to spend, you know, $100,000 in ... urn ... upgrades before they can even get the
meter. So can you explain that ... what, what it is actually that people need to be prepared to look at?
MR. CHANG: Okay. When we do have water available and we go down the list and make actual offers, we
send a certified letter to the owner of the property based on the real property tax information. So the
current owner is sent these certified letters; and in those letters, we explain to the applicant or project
manager what improvements would be necessary, and they would have 30 days--from the date they,
they sign for the certified letter--to decide whether they know, they want to proceed with the project.
There have been cases where the applicant would need more time so he will make a request and we
would usually grant, you know, whatever he wants, 60 days or if he needs to find more information.
The first one ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and, and the ... urn ... 30-days is an awful short period of time to figure out if
you can come up with, you know, $100,000. So when you say you, you'll give them more time, is
60-days the most time you'll give 'em?
MR. CHANG: No. That depends on the situation and usually we, we try to give the applicant what they want
as long it's reasonable.
CHAIR ANDERSON: What's reasonable?
MR. CHANG: Well, if example, maybe, maybe a 20-lot subdivision where this guy needs to get easements
from his neighbor or financing. We factor those in ... the time they needed to get that type of things
settled.
ANDERSON: I see. So if you know there are specific things they need to do and the time it takes for
them to get it done, and you know they're proceeding to do it, then you'll, you'll consider
reasonable and give them that,
time extension?
CHANG: Correct.
for some reason, to
they decide that they
want to or they
can't afford to do the infra ... , infrastructure move ... , improvements, then we will notify them that
they're removed from the list. And if they want to be ... their project on the list again, they have to
make a brand new written request to the Department. And at that point, we would put them on the
bottom depending on when the re ... , made the new request to be placed on the list.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, can you then just give us example of the types of things that people might be faced
... urn ... you know, like you said when you send the certified letter you say what improvements they
need. So, you know, an easement or what are the types of improvements? If you can, just give us an
example of those types.
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MR. CHANG: Okay. The requirements would normally be like for fire protection, storage capacity,
distribution lines that ... urn ... this is something that Councilman Pontanilla just mentioned. That type
of infrastructure improvements and its all depends on where the property is within our system. Some of
'ern ... some people are lucky, they don't need to do anything. Others, unfortunately, that the system is
inadequate. Distribution lines, storage not, inadequate, then the applicant would be ... urn ... need to
satisfy the Department's Rules and Regs, which means that before we approve the meters, they have to
satisfy distribution, storage has to become adequate before we can actually approve the meter.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so, Mr. Kushi, is there a place in the rules that lists what these system requirements
are or im ... , improvements might, might be?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, Madam Chair. It would go back to the old original rules that were, were enacted back in
1977? It'd, it'd been found in, Herb ... it'd be Section?
MR. CHANG: Two for subdivisions and three.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah. Section 2 for subdivi ... , for subdivisions and Section 1 for ... urn ... for regular
hookups. And there's a whole slew of, of requirements regarding water mains, storage-CHAIR ANDERSON: So.
MR. KUSHI: --water, water meter location, point of adequacy, et cetera.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Point of adequacy. What's that, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Well it's, it's, it's a, an Engineering term. Maybe Herb Chang should explain that.
MR. CHANG: It just means where the system is capable of delivering the flow for the subdivision. So like the
case where we have a eight-inch line but it, it narrows down to a two-inch. And if you feel, somebody
wanted to do a 50-lot subdivision,
the point of accuracy would be at the end of the eight-inch
may be a mile away. Some people it might be right
front their properties.
ANDERSON: I see. And then can
maybe just give us a brief explanation. Fire protection, we
hear a lot about that. That the Fire Department would okay something if they put in a sprinkler system,
yet, you guys require the fire flow. So, can you give us a brief explanation of that scenario?
MR. CHANG: Okay. The fire flow, we have two, two categories that determine what kind of fire flow is
needed for projects. Under the subdivision situation fire flow is determined based on the zoning of the
property. Commercial, of course, is the worst one. It goes down to Ag, which the least amount of fire
flow needed.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and that, is that in the rules?
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MR. CHANG: Yes. It's Rule, Rule ...
CHAIR ANDERSON:
Residential.

In other words, fire flow for Ag, the fire flow for Commercial, the fire flow for

MR. CHANG: Yeah. Section 2 of the Rules and Regs.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. CHANG: It's covered in there.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. CHANG: For water service, which is Sec ... , Section 3. That's like for building permits or commercial
developments. We would require the fire flow be determined not by zoning but by fire flow demand
calculations that's created, but it was created by the insurance service office. They have a formula that
they plug in the numbers based, you know, it's ... the numbers. The fire flow is determined based on the
area of the building, the size, what kind of materials, wood or metal ... (end of tape, start 2B @
10:52 a.m.). .. adjoining properties with the buildings and that affects the ... urn ... spread of fires. So
we use that ... urn ... formula in that type of ... urn ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: And that's for a building permit or regular hookup?
MR. CHANG: Correct. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Now, is it standard procedure for the Department to request someone to upgrade fire
flow from the main line to where their house is? To where their meter is?
MR. CHANG: For me ... to answer that, I'd need to know like ... urn ... what. ..
house or commercial?

someone is building a

me give you an
and ... urn . . .
example
gonna use
There was ... urn ... a person on Molokai who's inherited a
a subdivision that had
... urn ... subdivided many years ago. And they were told ... urn . . .
order to get a meter at their
lot, they would have to upgrade the fire flow from the main line to the subdivision, which was many
hundreds of feet away from their home. And would have cost in excess of, I think, it was, I don't know,
$80,000 or something. Is that standard? In other words, everybody along that line would have, you
know-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Benefited.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: --benefited. Thank you. (NOTE: She s thanking Councilmember Johnson.) From their
expenditure just so that they could get a meter on that lot. And is that standard?
MR. CHANG: Let me start off and I guess Ed can jump in. Staff, Staff's interpretation of the Rules, Section 3
was ... urn ... anybody who made a request to get a water meter. Before the Department would issue
the meter, they'd make ... have to make sure that the fire protection and ... urn ... domestic service
can be handled by the existing water main. That was what Staff was using in the past few years but
... urn ... I guess I'd let Ed Kushi take it from there.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Madam Chair. I'm not sure if this is the same project but we did ... urn ... our office did
look at it very carefully and, and, in consultation with Herb Chang and Mr. Alva Nakamura, Engineering
in Water.
There was a situation in Molokai almost exactly on point which you just, you just described. And we
looked at from, from a historical point of view. This property was a stand-alone. I mean a part of a
subdivision that was reviewed and granted approval by the Department way back when. Let's say
20 years ago. At that time, the subdivision was granted. It complied with all the applicable rules and it
was in compliance with the Water System Standards.
For, for whatever reason, this lot did not apply for a meter. Everybody else did. Then the owner ... a
new owner came in and applied for a meter. Molokai does not have a priority list so there's available
source. The Department then said okay you gotta improve this line from four-inch to six-inch or eightinch up the road for about a mile. We looked at it and, and we issued the Department a memo stating
that pursuant to the rules and our interpretation that because this lot was a lot in a subdivision that was
approved by the Department notwithstanding 10, 20 years ago, it is in compliance. Therefore, you
cannot then make the owner upgrade the system for the benefit of the, the, the County. If the County
wants the ... urn ... the, the Department or the County wants to upgrade it, they should do it through a
project to benefit all the owners.
So in that case, we did ... urn ... I believe the Department did issue the meter without any upgrades.
have been some
improvements to
line in
their,
property,
terms
a
also, I believe the restrictive fire hydrant or standpipe requirements were also waived.
Again that brings us to the point where when you do review these rules, you may wanna look at it again.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you. That was the one that I was referencing, Mr. Kushi. I appreciate
that. And just before I, I'm gonna let Mr. Pontanilla have the last question of the day 'cause we gotta
close in, close up here.
But I just wanna extend on what you were just saying. So let's just say that a family Upcountry has, had
a ... has a five-acre parcel that they've had for generations, and they wanna ... urn ... subdivide off,
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subdivide it into two parcels, which would mean they'd need one more meter. If the fire flow standards
have never been upgraded ... urn ... to the, to that area, and they want to put in a meter for this one
extra lot, are they then gonna have to--because it's being subdivided today--are they then gonna have to
upgrade the fire flow standards to their existing home and the second meter? And anything in between?
MR. CHANG: Yes. Yes, they'd have to.
CHAIR ANDERSON: They would have to?
MR. CHANG: Yes. According to the Rules and Regs No.2.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so when, when did the fire flow standards ... urn ... change?
MR. CHANG: Which fire flow standards, like?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I don't know. They must have been upgraded when the subdivision. When this family
five lot was first developed, it must have met the standards when, you know, when it was first
developed. And if it's been there for, you know, two generations. I'm sure the fire flow standards have
now changed so.
MR. CHANG. Urn ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: In other words, if it, it's, if it's been adequate all these years, then why now do they have
to upgrade it?
MR. CHANG: Yeah. Since I've been here, we've been dealing with ... I've been dealing with the 1977
standards. And prior to that, I'm not sure what was used.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So the stan ... , the fire flow standards we have right now were established in 1977?
MR. CHANG: Yes.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, I know we have to go at, at about eleven.
question that I had was in regards to what Corporation Counsel explained in regards to the Molokai
situation. If the applicant was to be required to put in that extra line, transmission line, so that he could
get water service. Anybody come in after that meaning that, you know, for some reason, you know,
existing dwell ... , lots now requiring a, a larger water or more water for ... like say they put up an
ohana. Can that person tap off the new line that was put in by this applicant that needed to put it in?
And, and does that applicant the, the first one get reimbursed for any of the cost?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good question. Mr. Chang?
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MR. CHANG: Oh. Depends on the situation. If there is a provision in Rule ... Section 2 for subdivisions, if
the subdivider puts in a line that other properties could use, the Department reimburses that subdivider
half of the costs of the construction in five annual payments.
As far as if somebody had a lot and he wanted to just build a house and more homes, this subdivision
application would be applicable if he ... upon the third dwelling 'cause upon the third dwellings, our
Rules and Regs interpret, defines as ... three homes as a subdivision. Under that criteria, if he did
improvements, he would be qualified to get that halfback. Other than that, he wouldn't get anything. If
somebody had a house, he wanted to do a cottage, had do improvements, he wouldn't be qualified to get
any reimbursement.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. And then is, is there like a grace period after a certain period
whoever comes in don't have to payor we don't have to pay the developer?
MR. CHANG: No. When ... after the met ... , the line is dedicated to the County, it's pretty much anybody-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For all.
MR. CHANG: --can hook up to it without any payments.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. CHANG: Other than making sure fire protection and water, water meter fees and that kind stuff.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That might be something we want to look at when we get to that point in the rules.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
MOLINA, PONTANILLA, AND TAVARES)

- 37-

ANDERSON, JOHNSON,

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

November 15, 2006

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Members, for your patience this morning. Thank you,
Staff. Thank you especially for Mr. Chang. We appreciate you being here to explain this. This is just
the beginning and we will stay on this and see if we can't get some assistance for the community
Up country. We appreciate all of you being here very much. The meeting of the Water Resource ... oh,
any announcements, Members? No announcements. We're all heading to Molokai. So ... urn ...
thank you so much for your attendance this morning. The Water Resources Committee meeting of
November 15 th is adjourned .... (gavel) ...
ADJOURN: 11:02 a.m.
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